2001

Mervin R. Reid, Ethna R. Reid v. Mutual of Omaha Insurance Company : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF KIND OF CASE

This is an action by Plaintiffs, alleging breach of a lease agreement and a Counterclaim by Defendants alleging that Plaintiffs' conduct and the conduct of the adjacent tenant constituted a breach of the lease agreement, and a constructive eviction of Defendants.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The matter was tried to the court sitting without a jury and the trial court rendered a judgment in behalf of Plaintiffs and against Defendants for the entire amount of the future rental due under the lease agreement and for damages and the trial court dismissed Defendants' Counterclaim, no cause of action.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks to have the judgment of the trial court reversed, and a determination made that Defendants are entitled to damages on their counterclaim; or, in the alternative, a new trial with instructions to the trial court regarding the applicable law; and/or, a remittitur or a reduction in the award to the Plaintiffs.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. On or about the 15th day of September, 1980, The Plaintiffs, owners and occupants of the basement and second floor (R. 430) of a building located at 2710 East 3300 South in Salt Lake City, Utah entered into a written lease agreement with Defendants for 60% of the main floor for a period of 5 years. (R. 403) The rent was to be paid in the

sum of \$1,100 on the first day of each and every month.
(Exhibit 1-P).

2. When the Defendants signed the written lease agreement (Exhibit 1-P), the entire main floor was vacant.
(R. 403, 512.)

3. On October 3, 1980, two weeks later, the Plaintiffs entered into a written lease agreement with Greco and Associates, hereinafter referred to as Intermountain Marketing, to lease the space adjacent (R. 448, 516) to the Defendants' space with occupancy to commence on the same date as that of Defendants. (Exhibit 29-P, R. 432.)

4. The Defendants' premises were situated in the leasehold property in such a manner as to require them to use a common entryway and hallway with Intermountain Marketing. (Exhibit 42-d) In addition, the employees and clients of Defendants would have to pass by the entrance to Intermountain Marketing to get to the entrance to Defendants' leased premises. (R. 601, 606)

5. The adjacent tenants, Intermountain Marketing brought large groups of sales trainees into their premises

to instruct and motivate them to go out and sell various household wares on a door to door basis. (R. 600)

6. In the process of interviewing, training and motivating the various salespersons, Intermountain Marketing engaged in practices which included the following:

a. The serving and consumption of refreshments in the halls during break times. (R. 543, 590-591, 606, 625-626, 672)

b. Setting up registration tables in the hallway. (R. 522-523, 589-590, 606, 672)

c. Permitting the trainees to engage in practice sessions with one another in the halls during break times. (R. 544, 626, 716)

d. Permitting large numbers of trainees and salespersons to overload the bathrooms, smoke, put lipstick on the wall (R. 675), fill the sinks with paper towels, extinguish cigarettes on the floors and in the toilets, and consume all the paper service making them unsuitable on frequent occasions for the Defendants or their clients to

use. (R. 441, 445-446, 544-546, 548-549, 607, 643-644, 672-673, 675-676, 712, 723-724)

e. Permitting boxes of merchandise to remain in the halls to be sold or delivered to salespersons and/or customers of Intermountain Marketing. (R. 462, 522-523, 592-593, 728, ["The hallways . . . looked like a warehouse."] R. 518)

f. During the sales and training sessions, large numbers of people would be arriving at the Intermountain Marketing offices. (R. 603, 716) As employees or clients of Defendants would attempt to make their way through the hall they would on occasion be stopped and/or directed by Intermountain Marketing people into the sales and training sessions. (R. 447, 521-522, 543, 586-590)

g. During the sales and training sessions, the instructors of Intermountain Marketing would cause the trainees and salespersons to engage in activities which were extremely noisy and

disturbed the Defendants. Those practices included:

(1) Count down drills in which the participants would count-down backwards, shouting out loud, in unison from the number ten to the number one, followed by the shout "I feel great," followed by loud clapping, cheering, and the stamping of feet. (R. 439-440, 447-448, 450, 525, 534, 542, 604-605, 620, 624-625, 632, 670, 712, 715-716, 721, 723, 727)

(2) The trainees and salespersons would engage in loud laughter and clapping on a periodic basis. (R. 465, 525-527, 609, 623, 624) On occasion the instructor would throw a pie in the face on someone present to get the trainees to scream with laughter. (R. 524-525)

(3) Playing loud stereo music, (rock, new wave, etc.) every day to

establish an atmosphere as the young trainees would come to their office.

(R. 528, 615-616, 624, 669-670)

7. The walls which separated the Plaintiffs from the Defendants were semi-portable walls called "Ultra-walls", installed over the carpet. (R. 449)

8. The walls lacked sufficient insulation, to insulate Plaintiffs' premises from the noise emanating from the Defendants' premises. (R. 511, 642-643).

9. The ceilings were suspended ceilings which were not insulated between offices. (R. 526)

10. When the noise and disturbances would emanate from Intermountain Marketing's premises, the Defendants would have to terminate their activities until the disturbance would cease. That would require the Defendants to:

a. Either stop or delay their telephone conversations. (R. 526, 727-728)

b. Either stop or delay their sales presentations to their clients. (R. 526-527, 728)

11. The disturbances continued or increased so substantially just prior to the time that Defendants vacated the premises that the following occurred:

a. The Defendants' secretaries and personnel were becoming upset by the frequent outbursts. (R. 671)

b. Because of the problems and disturbances, the Defendants could no longer safely use the offices to deal with prospective clients and to make sales presentations. Ninety percent of the business Defendants conducted at their offices was interviews with clients. (R. 513) The most important function of the office was sales. (R. 649)

The Defendants' salespersons stopped bringing their clients and prospective clients into the office for fear of loss of sales which would occur as a result of the problems in the halls, and the noise and outbursts. The salespersons began to conduct all their business outside of the office

to avoid the embarrassment and potential loss of sales. (R. 659-660, 664-665, 712-713, 718)

c. Clients of the Defendants who came to Defendants' office would respond with shock at the outbursts of noise and cheering and it was necessary for Defendants to make explanations to pacify the clients and prospective clients. (R. 527, 532, 579, 671-672, 716, 728)

12. The Intermountain Marketing, trainees and salespersons who would attend the meetings which were held three days a week every week (R. 602-603) would completely fill the entire parking lot, overflow to the street, fill all the available nearby street parking and would overflow into the church parking lot down the street. (R. 446, 520-521, 641, 679, 766-767)

13. At least three days a week, during most of the day, there were no parking spaces available in the parking lot or nearby where either the employees of Defendant or their clients could park. (R. 520-521, 608, 669, 674, 724, 729) This factual recitation was supported by the testimony of Hector Diaz R. 520-521, Alice Thompson R. 669, 674,

Verlin Nelsen R. 674, Blaine Stonebraker 729, and John Greco of Intermountain Marketing R. 608. The testimony was substantial and detailed the efforts made on occasion to attempt to direct parking to locations other than the parking lot.

Plaintiffs did not introduce any testimony which would rebut the detailed testimony presented by Defendants regarding the parking except to have the Plaintiff Ethna Reid testify and make the following statement which was essentially repeated by her once or twice:

"Parking had never been a problem and they claimed it had.

I was in the office on a considerable number of days and I never found it impossible to ever park at any time as long as I went to the back parking lot and that those parking spaces were vacant if people wanted to use them . . ." (R. 781)

14. On numerous occasions, ice and snow covered the parking lot and entryway to the building making it hazardous for the Defendants and their clients. (R. 712, 724)

15. The Defendants made numerous complaints to Plaintiffs about the conduct of Intermountain Marketing. (Exhibits 18-d, 19-d, 20-d, 23-d, 24-d, and 25-d, R.

441-453, 458-459, 530-533) During the summer of 1981, the Plaintiffs had meetings with the Defendants and with Intermountain Marketing and Plaintiffs asked Intermountain Marketing to cease their disturbing conduct. (R. 465, 536, 763, 771) Plaintiffs had their attorney write a letter to Intermountain Marketing demanding their cessation of such conduct. (R. 466-468, 774, 778, Exhibits 21-d, 22-P)

16. For a period of time following the meetings between Plaintiffs, Defendants and Intermountain Marketing, and written demands, some of the problems were alleviated. (R. 536-537, 673, 764, 771, 773-774, 778)

17. Although the noise had abated somewhat during the summer and Fall of 1981, (R. 536, 765) in January of 1982, and thereafter, Intermountain Marketing returned to its earlier schedule of noise and count-down drills. (R. 468-469, 536, 607-608, 627-628, 673-674, 716-717, 768, 771, Exhibit 23-d)

18. Defendants complained about the disturbances to Plaintiffs on several occasions and wrote letters to Plaintiffs. (Exhibits 18-d, 19-d, 20-d, 23-d, 24-d, and 25-d, R. 441-453, 458-459, 530-533)

19. In response to the Complaints by Defendants, from and after December 15, 1981, the the Plaintiffs took no action. (R. 471-477, 487, 776, 779-780, 784)

20. Plaintiffs were separated from the noise and confusion created by Intermountain Marketing by Concrete Floors which permitted little or no noise to be transmitted to Plaintiffs' premises. (R. 450, 512, 708.)

21. In addition, after Intermountain Marketing had moved into the premises, the Plaintiffs isolated the second floor and the basement from the main floor tenants by constructing a sound barrier and glass wall at the entry way to the building so that the occupants of the main floor and their clients, entered by a door and hall separate from that of the Plaintiffs. (R. 698-699)

22. During the last several months of 1981, and the first two months of 1982, the conduct of Intermountain Marketing was disturbing Defendants' business to the point that the manager of the local office and personnel at the national office became concerned about the potential loss of business which would occur if the Defendants continued to

occupy the premises under the conditions which existed. (R. 691-693, 658-660)

23. The Defendants sent Plaintiffs a letter dated December 12, 1981, demanding that Plaintiffs take action to alleviate the problems. Plaintiffs took no action, in response thereto. (R. 702-704, 706-707) The Defendants thereafter notified Plaintiffs that they considered the lease agreement to be breached by Plaintiffs and Defendants vacated the premises on or about February 12, 1982. (Exhibit 2-P and R. 542)

During this period of time, the Plaintiffs took the position that no problem existed. (See Exhibits 26-P and 33-P). The Plaintiff Ethna Reid testified as follows:

" . . . [T]here was no problem. . . there just had not been a problem. Intermountain Marketing, I did not feel, was making a noise or a confusion. I did not think that they had created any problem for Mutual of Omaha, not as serious a problem as Mr. Morten was trying to make out." (R. 784)

Concerning the problems other than parking, the foregoing unsubstantiated opinion of the Plaintiff Ethna Reid, was the only testimony offered to rebut the

overwhelming testimony and evidence offered by the Defendants.

24. Within a few days after Defendants vacated the premises, Plaintiffs entered into a lease agreement with Intermountain Marketing (Exhibit 31-P) to lease a substantial portion of the premises previously occupied by Defendants, with occupancy to commence on April 1, 1982. (R. 612-614, 699-701)

25. Within a few weeks after Defendants vacated the premises, Plaintiffs entered into an additional lease agreement to lease virtually the entire main floor of the premises to Intermountain Marketing (Exhibit 30-P, R. 612-614, 699-701)

26. Shortly after Defendants vacated the premises, the Plaintiffs remodelled the premises for occupancy by Intermountain Marketing, and Intermountain Marketing took possession of the newly remodeled portion of the premises on or about July 1, 1982. (Exhibit 30-P)

27. Plaintiffs filed this action against Defendants on April 12, 1982, Defendants Counterclaimed and a trial was held.

28. After Defendants had vacated and had moved to their new location they noted a substantial increase in their business, which they in part attributed to the agents' attitudes toward and utilization of the new offices. (R. 660-661, 666)

The Plaintiffs offered no evidence to rebut any of the foregoing statements of facts except as indicated.

ARGUMENT

POINT NO. I

THE TRIAL COURT FAILED TO MAKE SPECIFIC FINDINGS ON ALL MATERIAL ISSUES OF FACT AND SUCH FAILURE ALONE CONSTITUTES REVERSIBLE ERROR.

A. THE TRIAL COURT FAILED TO MAKE SPECIFIC FINDINGS ON THE PERTINENT ISSUES BEFORE THE COURT.

Rule 52 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure requires the trial court to make specific findings of fact and conclusions of law. The rule provides as follows:

"In all actions tried upon the facts without a jury or with an advisory jury, the court shall find the facts specially and state separately its conclusions of law thereon. . ."

The rule has been upheld by the Utah Supreme Court in several cases which have held that failure to make findings

on all material issues constitutes reversible error. (See Romrell v. Zions First National Bank N.A., 611 P.2d 392 (Utah 1980); Boyer Co. v. Lignell, 567 P.2d 1112 (Utah 1977); Gaddis Investment Co. v. Morrison, 3 Utah 2d 43, 278 P.2d 284 (1954).)

A review of the so-called Findings of Fact (R. 353) demonstrates that they are not findings but instead are conclusions. Appellants respectfully call the court's attention to the following paragraphs which Appellants submit are not findings but instead are conclusions:

Paragraphs 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 13, 17, 23, and 28. (R. 353-358)

A review of the factual recitation contained in this brief demonstrates that substantial factual issues were presented to the trial court, but the trial court failed to make specific findings on any of the factual issues presented.

Defendants respectfully submit that the failure of the trial court to make findings on those issues constitutes reversible error.

B. HAD THE TRIAL COURT MADE SPECIFIC FINDINGS ON THE PERTINENT FACTUAL ISSUES BEFORE THE COURT, THOSE FINDINGS WOULD HAVE SUPPORTED DEFENDANTS' CLAIMS AND WOULD HAVE DEMONSTRATED THAT PLAINTIFFS WERE NOT ENTITLED TO RECOVER ON THEIR COMPLAINT.

A review of the factual recitation in this brief demonstrates substantial, uncontraverted evidence and testimony was presented to the trial court by Defendants. In regard to several issues, the trial court held that further testimony would be cumulative and would not be permitted.

Since no testimony or evidence was introduced to rebut the substantial testimony introduced by Defendants the trial court was obliged to make findings consistent with that testimony and evidence.

Not only did the trial court fail to make specific findings consistent with the facts set forth in the factual recitation of this brief, but also it merely stated that the claims of Defendants "were without merit." (R. 280)

Although the trial was commenced on July 18, 1984, the trial court did not issue its Memorandum Decision until September 29, 1983.

The Defendants respectfully submit that the trial court's failure to make findings on all the relevant and pertinent issues and the trial court's failure to make findings consistent with the uncontraverted testimony and evidence constituted reversible error.

C. THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED FURTHER
ERROR BY ENTERING CONCLUSIONS OF LAW NOT
SUPPORTED BY THE FINDINGS.

The following Utah cases have held that findings are necessary to support conclusions of law. B.T. Morgan, Inc. v. First Security Corporation, 82 Utah 316, 24 P.2d 384 (1933); and Parrott Bros. Co. v. Ogden City, 50 Utah 512, 167 P. 807 (1917).

There are no findings to support the following conclusions of law:

Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 and therefore paragraph 10 as well. (R. 359-361)

Absent findings to support the conclusions, the conclusions of law must fail and likewise the judgment rendered in reliance thereon.

POINT NO. II

PLAINTIFFS' CONDUCT AND ITS FAILURE TO TAKE ADEQUATE MEASURES TO ALLEVIATE THE CONDITIONS CAUSED BY INTERMOUNTAIN MARKETING CONSTITUTED A CONSTRUCTIVE EVICTION OF DEFENDANTS FROM THE PREMISES.

A. THE LAW OF CONSTRUCTIVE EVICTION.

The doctrine of Constructive Eviction has long been recognized by the Utah Supreme Court. In Barker v. Utah Oil Refining Co., 111 Utah 308, 178 P.2d 386, 388 (1947), the Utah Supreme Court set forth the Utah law regarding constructive eviction and quoted Black's Law Dictionary as follows:

"Actual eviction is an actual expulsion of the tenant out of all or some part of the demised premises; a physical ouster or dispossession from the very thing granted or some substantial part thereof. * * *

"Constructive eviction. * * * With reference to the relation of landlord and tenant, there is a 'constructive eviction' when the former, without intent to oust the latter, does some act which deprives the tenant of the beneficial enjoyment of the demised premises or materially impairs such enjoyment. * * *"

In Barker the landlord converted a garage on the leased premises to a dance hall without permission of the

tenant. The Court held that such conversion could constitute constructive eviction.

In Thirteenth & Washington STS. Corp. v. Nelsen, 123 Utah 70, 254 P.2d 847 (1953), the Utah Supreme Court recognized the right of a tenant to claim a constructive eviction where the tenant's enjoyment of the premises was substantially disturbed. In this case, the tenants claimed a constructive eviction occurred because the landlord leased portions of the building for use as a shoe shine stand, beauty parlor and barber shop and allowed other conditions to exist. The Utah Supreme Court stated:

"Concerning the general law regarding what interference will constitute a constructive eviction, American Jurisprudence has this to say:

"* * * any disturbance of the tenant's possession by the landlord, or someone acting under his authority, which renders the premises unfit for occupancy for the purposes for which they were demised * * * amounts to a constructive eviction, provided the tenant abandons the premises within a reasonable time."

but properly adds this qualification:

"* * * To constitute a constructive eviction, the interference * * * with the tenant's enjoyment of the demised premises must be of a substantial nature

and so injurious as to deprive him of the beneficial enjoyment of a part or the whole of the demised premises."

. . . The failure to do some act or to adequately perform it, may render a building just as untenable as affirmative interference. The text in American Jurisprudence further reads: "an eviction may be based on the landlord's omission to act where it is his duty to act." [Emphasis added].

Where the landlord authorizes conduct by another it is imputable to him and he must bear the responsibility for it. Plaintiff's agents could well foresee that the shoeshine stand, barber shop and beauty parlor installations would bring about the difficulties that were encountered. The plaintiff is answerable for the natural and probable consequences of the placement and operation of these businesses, as well as for the direct consequences of its own acts or failures to act.

The court went on to review the circumstances of the case, particularly the fact that any one given problem might not have constituted a constructive eviction, but a composite of different elements may together comprise a constructive eviction. The court stated:

"The law is a dignified profession involving the selling of one's services. Professional standards prevent a lawyer from advertising his talents, and as a consequence he is dependent upon other means of attracting and holding a clientele. In connection with the promise of a "first class" building, defendants had a right to expect that the entrance, corridors and offices would present

a businesslike and attractive appearance consonant with the dignity and respectability of their profession and that the building services would also comport therewith. However, even Mr. Kipp, plaintiff's building manager, admitted that certain of the conditions fell below such standard. (Id. at 851-852.)

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