2001

Mervin R. Reid v. Mutual of Omaha Insurance Company : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action for breach of a Lease Agreement and a Counterclaim for constructive eviction.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The trial court sitting without jury rendered judgment in favor of plaintiffs and dismissed Defendants' Counterclaim.

RELIEF ON AN APPEAL

Respondents, Mervin and Ethna Reid, seek affirmation of the lower court's order granting judgment in favor of plaintiffs and dismissing Defendants' Counterclaim and remand to the District Court for an award of reasonable attorney's fees as provided for in the lease agreement.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On or about September 15, 1980 plaintiffs entered into a lease agreement with defendants. Plaintiffs occupied the top floor of the Reid Office Building and defendants, Mutual of Omaha and United Benefit Life Insurance Company (hereinafter referred to as "Mutual of Omaha") and Intermountain Marketing took possession of the bottom floor simultaneously (R. 431).

Beginning in November of 1980, Mutual of Omaha, by and through its General Manager, Hector Diaz, began complaining of alleged problems encountered as tenants in the Reid Building (R. 441). The alleged problems raised by defendants were concerns which are common in the rental of any building, noise from the adjacent tenant, improper maintenance of the common restrooms, improper use of the common areas by the adjacent tenant, parking problems, failure to properly remove ice and snow from the parking lot and sidewalks. Mr. Diaz complained to the Reids every time the restrooms were short on paper products or any time he perceived a problem (R. 643).

Plaintiffs, Mervin and Ethna Reid, listened to the complaints of defendants and then worked to solve the alleged problems of Mr. Diaz (R. 445, 451, 455, 456, 461-463, 465, 466, 770-776). On several occasions Mr. and Mrs. Reid met personally with Intermountain Marketing to attempt to alleviate any alleged problems created by them (R. 451, 456, 465, 473, 770-776, 763)

and even caused their attorney to send a letter to Intermountain Marketing (R. 472). In each instance, Intermountain Marketing agreed to stop or limit practices that were being complained of by Mr. Diaz (R. 770-776). Intermountain Marketing even agreed to stop the complained of noise emanating from their office until after office hours (R. 607, 537).

Aside from the improper removal of ice and snow and the improper maintenance of the restrooms which Mr. Diaz admits was taken care of shortly after they entered the building, all of the other problems complained of were created or caused by Intermountain Marketing (R. 481). Mervin and Ethna Reid did not cause or authorize any of the problems complained of by defendants through Mr. Diaz (R. 486, 558, 557).

By his own admission, Mr. Diaz's major concern was the noise emanating from Intermountain Marketing (R. 555). Mr. Diaz asserts that after June 9, 1981 he had his secretary note each occurrence of noise from the adjacent tenants, Intermountain Marketing (R. 560, 561). Mr. Diaz is aware of only 19 separate occurrences, several of which were on the same date, during the 8 month period from June 1981 through February 15, 1982 (Responses to Interrogatories, R. 133-138 and Supplement Responses 210, R. 561). Mr. Diaz tape recorded these occurrences from Mutual of Omaha's office. Defendant selected excerpts from these tape recordings which were played to the court (R. 540,

541) and Mr. Diaz testified that these tape recordings were representative of the noise that came from Intermountain Marketing (R. 539, 571).

However, other employees of defendants testified that Mr. Diaz's concern over the noise was exaggerated (R. 717, 718). The complained of noise consisted of applause, and laughter, as well as a countdown from 10 to 0 followed by "I feel great" repeated twice, followed by applause (R. 604,605). The countdown lasted approximately 12 seconds in duration and was referred to as a "fire-up" drill (R. 604, 605).

With regard to the alleged parking problems, Mr. Diaz admits that he was always able to find parking in the morning (R. 520). Also, there were always parking spaces available under the building (R. 489).

With regard to the alleged janitorial problems, no problems existed after talking with the Reids (R. 554, 555). Intermountain Marketing, who used the same restrooms and common areas, had no complaints concerning janitorial services (R. 621).

With regard to the alleged problems in hallways as well as all other problems, these concerns were all resolved by the Reids through talking with the tenants (R. 770-776).

Mr. Diaz cannot site any business that was lost because of the noise or the complained of problems by Intermountain

Marketing or by plaintiffs, Mervin and Ethna Reid (R. 583). Moreover, Mr. Diaz admits that each year Mutual of Omaha was in the Reid Building, they increased their production from the previous year (R. 660-665).

Mr. Diaz told Mervin Reid that he needed more office space and asked him if Mutual of Omaha could rent more space (R. 386, 387). The new lease procured by Mutual of Omaha provides for approximately 20% more space than they had in the Reid Building (Exhibit 32P).

On November 17, 1981 plaintiffs received a letter from Mutual of Omaha's attorney, Larry Morton, stating that the noise must cease or that they would terminate the lease (Exhibits 23d). In response, the Reids replied with a letter of December 4, 1981 that they would hold Mutual of Omaha strictly to the terms of the lease obligations and would not allow the lease to be terminated (Exhibits 33P). At the end of December, defendants had not heard any further noise from Intermountain Marketing and accordingly Mutual of Omaha instructed that January's rent should be paid (Exhibit 25D, R. 695-697). Mervin and Ethna Reid, likewise, heard no disturbances nor were they contacted by Mr. Diaz regarding any other problems with noise or any other complaints (R. 775, 776). From January 1, 1982, Mervin and Ethna Reid received no further complaints from either Mutual of Omaha or Mr. Diaz regarding any problem until February 14, 1982

When the moving van appeared at the Reid Building and Mr. Diaz indicated that he was leaving the leased premises (R. 487, 776). The Reids received a letter the following day, February 15th, indicating that Mutual of Omaha considered the lease agreement terminated (Exhibit 2P).

Mervin and Ethna Reid then filed suit against Mutual of Omaha for breach of the lease agreement and the verified complaint was signed on April 8, 1982.

On April 9, 1982 Intermountain Associated Marketing requested a lease for a substantial portion (Exhibit 31P) of the space previously occupied by Mutual of Omaha. On June 30, 1982 Intermountain Marketing agreed to lease the remaining portion of the premises taken up by Mutual of Omaha (Exhibit 30P). In November, 1982 Intermountain Marketing vacated the premises and declared bankruptcy (R. 614).

The suit for the breach of the lease agreement was tried before the Honorable Peter F. Leary on July 18, 19 and 20, 1983 and the Court found after hearing all the evidence and listening to the tapes of the noise that all of the complained of problems of Mutual of Omaha were without merit and did not amount to a constructive eviction (R. 354, 355). The Court awarded plaintiffs damages for breach of lease agreement in the amount of \$26,884.23 plus Judgment for the remaining payments due under the lease.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

WHERE THE TRIAL COURT DETERMINED THAT TENANT MUTUAL OF OMAHA'S ALLEGED PROBLEMS ARE WITHOUT MERIT, THE COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED DEFENDANT'S CLAIM OF A CONSTRUCTIVE EVICTION.

A. This Court should not overturn the trial court's finding that no constructive eviction occurred where the court's findings were based on reasonable and substantial evidence.

The case of Brugger v. Fonoti, 645 P.2d 647 (Utah 1982) is directly on point and provides the applicable law for the case at bar. In that case the Court held that tenants were not constructively evicted from premises leased for the purpose of running a restaurant. Defendants claimed that the noise emanating from a disco below the restaurant as well as lack of maintenance and other associated problems which caused the restaurant to shut down one weekend were grounds for constructive eviction. In that case, defendants entered a ten year lease with plaintiffs for the second floor of plaintiff's building. Some four months after defendants moved into the building, a disco was allowed to move into the building directly below defendants. Defendants complained to the owners that the loud disco music interfered with their business as well as attracting undesirable people. Defendants also complained a sewer problems and of leaks in roofs or holes in walls. The fan

in the kitchen also broke requiring the restaurant to be closed over the weekend. The defendants then quit the premises, claiming they had been constructively evicted from the premises as a result of the disco noise, the lack of maintenance and the associated problems.

The case was tried to a judge sitting without jury and the court held no constructive eviction occurred. This Court confirmed the judgment of the trial court and held that where competent evidence exists that the landlord or person under his control did not render premises or part thereof unsuitable for its intended purpose, a constructive eviction does not exist. This Court also explained that the evidence must be viewed in the light most favorable to the finding of a trier of fact.

In the Brugger case, the main concern of the tenant claiming a constructive eviction was the noise, the disco in the basement, emanating from an adjacent tenant. Id. at 648. Likewise, Mutual of Omaha's primary concern was the noise emanating from Intermountain Marketing (R. 487). In the Brugger case, the Court found that disco was a disturbance but the noise had a limited effect on defendants' operation. Under the facts of this case, the Court found the noise made by Intermountain Marketing was distracting, but stated specifically that it was not of sufficient magnitude to warrant abandonment of the leased premises (R. 279) or otherwise make the premises unsuitable for

the purpose for which they were leased (Finding of Fact No. 5, R. 354). The Court further found in the case at bar that no evidence was presented that as a result of the noise or other alleged cumulative act, plaintiffs caused defendants any loss of business or damages (R. 279-80, Findings of Fact 7 and 8, R. 355).

In the Brugger case defendants complained of, in addition to noise, children being in the halls and maintenance problems which were significant enough to require the business to have been shut down over a weekend. Likewise, Mutual of Omaha complained of people in the halls and maintenance problems.

Moreover, in Brugger, the defendants remained in possession of the premises for 8 months after complaining of the noise and physical problems. In the case at bar, Mutual of Omaha complained of problems with the office building almost daily from the day they moved in (R. 441). These complaints were confirmed on June 10, 1981 by letter of Mr. Diaz indicating specific problems with the noise (R. 530). Like the complained of problems in Brugger, Mutual of Omaha waited a lengthy period, in this case fifteen months, before breaching its lease.

In Brugger v. Fonoti, this court was asked to overturn the findings of the trial judge. This court specifically held that the Court would review the evidence in light most favorable to plaintiffs that unless the evidence was so clear and

persuasive that all reasonable minds would necessarily conclude otherwise that it would uphold the trial court's findings. The Court stated:

It is a well established rule that the Court will review the evidence and all inferences to be drawn therefrom most favorable to the findings of the triers of fact. Smith v. Gallegos, 16 Utah 2d 344, 400 P.2d 570 (1965). Id. at 648.

In the case at bar defendants are requesting precisely what the appellant sought in the Brugger case, that is to overturn the trial judge's findings of fact that a constructive eviction did not exist. In this instance, the trial court's findings are well documented. Mutual of Omaha asserts that the real problem is the problem with the noise. (R. 555). Mutual of Omaha admits that they can attest to only 19 occurrences of noise since June 1981 (R. 133-138, 210, 561). These occurrences lasted approximately 12 seconds (R. 604, 605). Moreover, the Reids took precautions to prevent any problems from occurring (R. 445, 451, 455, 456, 461-466, 763, 770-776). Mutual of Omaha indicated that the noise had indeed ceased as of the end of December, 1982 (Exhibit 25D, R. 695-697).

Likewise the other problems, parking problems, problems with people in the hall, and maintenance problems had all resolved themselves after the attempts by Reids to solve the problems (R. 770-776). Plaintiff by his own admission, admits that the janitorial problems were remedied (R. 554, 555).

Intermountain Marketing indicates that the halls were cleared, and those problems associated with blocking the halls were alleviated (R. 770-776). Under these facts, the trial judge clearly had evidence upon which he could make a decision. These facts taken in light most favorable to plaintiffs as required by law, require that the holding of the trial court should be upheld. See Also, Smith v. Gallegos, 16 Utah 2d 344, 400 P.2d 570 (1965); Thirteenth and Washington STS Corp. v. Neslen, 123 Utah 70, 254 P.2d 847 (1953).

B. Normal problems encountered in buildings which are remedied within a reasonable time do not amount to a constructive eviction.

Mutual of Omaha's complaints as outlined above are merely ordinary complaints which may be encountered in any building. Where these complaints are acted upon and remedied by the landlord within a reasonable period of time, they do not amount to a constructive eviction. This court stated in Brugger v. Fonoti, 645 P.2d 647 (1982):

. . . where the maintenance problems were remedied within a reasonable time, constructive eviction does not occur . . . Defendants' basic complaints were that the toilet overflowed a couple of times, the roof leaked, and an exhaust fan failed when they were closed for a few days. These appear to be nothing other than the normal problems encountered with most any building, and were each taken care of as soon as reasonably possible. Id. at 648 (emphasis in original)

In the case at bar the alleged problems are normal problems encountered in most any building and were remedied within a reasonable time. Accordingly, a constructive eviction did not exist.

C. Where tenant Mutual of Omaha did not abandon the premises within a reasonable amount of time constructive eviction did not occur.

In Brugger v. Fonoti, 645 P.2d 647 (Utah 1982) citing Thirteen and Washington STS Corp. v. Neslen, 123 Utah 70, 254 P.2d 847 (1953), the Court found that where defendants did not leave the premises after complaining of problems until after 8 months, the constructive eviction did not exist. The court stated:

Tenant must, however, abandon the premises within a reasonable time after the alleged interference. Id. at 648.

In the case at bar, Mutual of Omaha began to claim problems almost immediately upon entering the building. However, it remained in the building for 16 months. Even after providing the Reids a formal notice of complaint of the noise in June of 1980, it still remained in the building 8 months before vacating the premises. This is analogous to the facts situation in Brugger which the court found to be an unreasonable amount of time. Accordingly, this Court should uphold the trial court's decision which found that a constructive eviction did not occur.

D. Where plaintiffs, Mervin and Ethna Reid, did not interfere with tenant, Mutual of Omaha, and where the complained of acts do not render the premises unsuitable to conduct business, a constructive eviction has not occurred.

The court in Brugger stated specifically that in order for a constructive eviction to occur, the landlord or someone under his control must interfere with the enjoyment of the leased premises and render those premises unsuitable for the purpose for which they are intended. The Court specifically enunciated the standard required for constructive eviction:

Construction eviction occurs where tenant's rights of possession and enjoyment of the leased premises is interfered with by the landlord, or person under his control, as to render the premises, or a part thereof, unsuitable for the purposes intended. Id. at 648.

In the case at bar, there is no indication that the premises were rendered unsuitable for the purpose intended. Mutual of Omaha at all times was able to conduct its selling of insurance. In fact, there is no proof of any loss of business (R. 583). Furthermore, production increased each year over the previous year while Mutual of Omaha was in the Reid Building (R. 660-665). There is no testimony that the building was not suitable as office space, the purpose for which it was intended.

The fact that Mutual of Omaha may have had specific standards for which they required their office space, does not

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